Compliance Audit, Financial Statements and Report of Independent Certified Public Accountants

The State Board of the

Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund

June 30, 2004

LEGISLATIVE AUDIT COMMITTEE

2004 MEMBERS

As of August 2, 2004

Representative Val Vigil Vice-Chairman

Senator Norma Anderson Representative Fran Coleman Representative Pamela Rhodes Representative Lola Spradley Senator Stephanie Takis Senator Jack Taylor Senator Ron Tupa

OFFICE OF THE STATE AUDITOR

Joanne Hill State Auditor

Sally Symanski Deputy State Auditor

Dianne Ray Legislative Auditor

Grant Thornton LLP
Contract Auditors

Accountants and Business Advisors

September 24, 2004

Members of the Legislative Audit Committee:

We have completed the financial statement audit of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004. Our audit was conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

We were engaged to conduct our audit pursuant to Article XXVII, Section 6(3), of the Colorado Constitution, which authorizes the State Auditor to conduct or cause to be conducted audits of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund. The reports that we have issued as a result of this engagement are set forth in the table of contents, which follows.

Dunt Shownton LLP

707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3200 Denver, CO 80202

T 303.813.4000

F 303.839.5711 Audit F 303.839.5701 Tax

W www.grantthornton.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
REPORT SUMMARY	1
RECOMMENDATION LOCATOR	3
DESCRIPTION OF THE STATE BOARD OF THE GREAT OUTDOORS COLORADO TRUST FUND	5
FINDING AND RECOMMENDATION	6
DISPOSITION OF PRIOR AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS	9
FINANCIAL STATEMENT SECTION	
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS	13
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	15
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET	20
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE	21
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	23
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION	
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL – GENERAL FUND	38
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH	
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS	40
REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS WITH LEGISLATIVE AUDIT COMMITTEE	42

REPORT SUMMARY

Financial and Compliance Audit For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Authority, Purpose and Scope

The audit of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (GOCO) was completed under the authority of Article XXVII, Section 6(3), of the Colorado Constitution, that requires the State Auditor to conduct an annual audit of GOCO, and Section 2-3-103, C.R.S., that authorizes the State Auditor to conduct audits of political subdivisions as required by law. The State Auditor has contracted with Grant Thornton LLP to conduct this audit.

We conducted this audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. We performed our audit work during the period from July through August 2004.

The purpose of this audit was to examine GOCO's financial records; review internal control systems including grant monitoring; and evaluate compliance with relevant state constitutional and statutory provisions.

We expressed an unqualified opinion on GOCO's financial statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004. Our opinion letter, dated August 12, 2004, is presented in the Financial Statement section of this report.

SUMMARY OF CURRENT YEAR FINDING AND RECOMMENDATION

We have identified one finding as follows:

Finding:

 While GOCO has made progress in recent years, further effort is needed to meet the requirement that "amounts expended for each of the [funding categories] ... be substantially equal" under Article XXVII.

SUMMARY OF PROGRESS IN IMPLEMENTING PRIOR AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

The prior year report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003 included two recommendations. One of the two recommendations has been fully implemented and one recommendation has been partially implemented (see page 9).

RECOMMENDATION LOCATOR

Our recommendation is addressed to The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund

Financial and Compliance Audit Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004

Rec No.	Page No.	Recommendation Summary	Agency Response	Implemen- tation Date
1.	8	Ensure that the percentage for grants authorized is at least twenty-five percent in the categories that are below the "substantially equal" expenditure level. Identify expenditure categories that are below the twenty-five percent level and focus on increasing those areas of spending by encouraging those divisions and entities to submit grant applications and to request reimbursement timely.	Agree	June 2005

DESCRIPTION OF THE STATE BOARD OF THE GREAT OUTDOORS COLORADO TRUST FUND

The Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (GOCO) and the State Board that oversees GOCO were created by Article XXVII of the Colorado Constitution. Article XXVII is the result of the passage of the Great Outdoors Colorado Initiative (Amendment 8) during the November 3, 1992 election. Fiscal Year 2004 is the eleventh year of operations for GOCO. During 2002, House Bill 1250 extended the termination date of the State Lottery from July 1, 2009 to July 1, 2024, thus continuing funding for GOCO through July 1, 2024.

Article XXVII establishes procedures for the distribution of net proceeds from state-supervised Lottery games. The intent of Article XXVII is to use a portion of net Lottery proceeds to provide funding for wildlife, park, river, trail and open space resources and related programs. To help ensure this, Article XXVII allocated part of net Lottery proceeds to GOCO. In turn, GOCO is responsible for funding appropriate programs through designated state and local agencies as well as other qualifying entities.

The State Board that oversees GOCO consists of two members of the public from each of the seven congressional districts, appointed by the Governor; a representative designated by the State Board of Parks and Outdoor Recreation; a representative designated by the Colorado Wildlife Commission; and the Executive Director of the Department of Natural Resources. Monies allocated to GOCO are for the purposes established in Article XXVII and are not subject to appropriation for any other purpose. GOCO is a political subdivision of the State. During Fiscal Year 2004, GOCO had a permanent staff of 14 and received \$49.6 million in net Lottery proceeds, the maximum allowable for Fiscal Year 2004.

FINDING AND RECOMMENDATION

Our audit included an examination of GOCO's financial records, a review of internal control systems including grant monitoring and an evaluation of compliance with relevant state constitutional and statutory provisions.

We identified the following area where additional efforts could be beneficial.

CONSTITUTIONAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SPENDING

Article XXVII requires that "amounts expended for each of the [funding categories] . . . be substantially equal." The four funding categories are wildlife, state parks and outdoor recreation, open space and local governments. In Fiscal Year 2001, the auditors recommended that GOCO focus efforts to ensure that expenditures are equal across the four categories. During the Fiscal Year 2002 and 2003 audits, we found that the GOCO Board had made efforts to address the spending levels by passing a new Overdue Grants Policy on December 12, 2001. This policy is expected to facilitate better "throughput" of projects, minimize the number of old but unexpended grants, and to align the four categories' grant authorizations more equally. During our Fiscal Year 2004 audit, we found some improvement in achieving the goal of "substantially equal" expenditures among the categories. However, continued efforts are needed.

The following chart shows the cumulative amounts in two different stages of the grants. The Grants Authorized is the amount, by category, approved by the GOCO Board. This authorization process is used by the GOCO Board to try and achieve the goal of equal spending across the four categories. The Grants Expended are cumulative actual expenditures.

GOCO Grants Cumulative through Fiscal Year 2004 (in thousands)

	Grants Authorized (Grants Ex	pended	Variance		
Program Category	Amount	%	Amount %		from 25%		
Category 1 – Wildlife	\$ 101,787	25.4	\$ 78,664	25.2	\$ 595		
Category 2 – State parks and outdoor			•		-		
recreation	100,172	25.0	81,792	26.2	3,723		
Category 3 –			·		,		
Competitive grants							
for open space	98,870	24.6	79,632	25.5	1,563		
Category 4 –	•		,		-,		
Competitive grants to							
local governments	100,181	_25.0	72,189	23.1	(5,881)		
_	401,010	100.0	312,277	100.0	(-,,		
Noncategorized –	•		•				
Discretionary	1,070	N/A	1,070	N/A			
Total	\$ <u>402,080</u>	,	\$ <u>313,347</u>	- /			

Source: Data provided by GOCO

FINDING AND RECOMMENDATION (CONTINUED)

This next chart compares the percentages in each category for Fiscal Year 2003 and Fiscal Year 2004 and calculates the variance of the percentages. During Fiscal Year 2004, one Grant Expended variance has become further out of compliance with the statutory requirement. Between Fiscal Year 2003 and Fiscal Year 2004, the variances indicate that two of the four categories are closer to the twenty-five percent mark. Specifically, Category 2 expenditures for State parks and outdoor recreation have fallen from 27.3% to 26.2% and Category 4 expenditures for competitive grants to local governments has risen from 22.8% to 23.1%, thus both have moved closer to the goal of 25%. However, Category 3 expenditures for competitive grants for open space rose from 25.1% to 25.5%. Overall, Category 4 grants to local governments continues to lag behind in all other categories.

GOCO Grant Comparison Fiscal Year 2003 and Fiscal Year 2004

	Grants Expended					
Program Category	FY2004	FY2003	Variance			
Category 1 – Wildlife	25.2%	24.8%	0.4%			
Category 2 - State						
parks and outdoor						
recreation	26.2	27.3	-1.1			
Category 3 –						
Competitive grants						
for open space	25.5	25.1	.4			
Category 4 –						
Competitive grants						
to local governments	23.1	22.8	.3			
	100.0	100.0				
Noncategorized-						
Discretionary	N/A	N/A	N/A			

Source: Data provided by GOCO and audited financial statements

FINDING AND RECOMMENDATION (CONTINUED)

Recommendation No. 1:

GOCO should ensure that the percentage for grants authorized is at least twenty-five percent in the categories that are below the "substantially equal" expenditure level. In addition, GOCO should continue to identify expenditure categories that are below the twenty-five percent level and focus on increasing those areas of spending by encouraging those divisions and entities to submit grant applications and to request reimbursement timely.

GOCO Response:

Agree. To be implemented by June 2005. At the end of Fiscal Year 2004, the only funding purpose expenditures significantly below 25% is the Local Government purpose. GOCO has addressed this area in several ways.

First, in an effort to boost expenditures in this purpose, GOCO's Spending Plan for Fiscal Year 2003 and 2004 included an additional \$1.0 million for Local Government grants compared to the other grant purposes.

Second, Local Government grant reimbursement standards and procedures have been reviewed to reduce duplication and to simplify the process in order to encourage quick turn around for grant reimbursement.

Thirdly, GOCO is also permitting Local Government grants to receive progress payments. Previously, Local Government Grants were reimbursed only upon the completion of entire projects and review of all expenditure documentation. The new procedure will allow for a 50% progress payment to be made to the grantees.

These improvements will expedite reimbursements for the Local Government Grants.

DISPOSITION OF PRIOR AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

The following audit recommendations are from The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund financial and compliance audit for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2003.

Recommendation

1. Conduct periodic reviews of the supporting documentation during the Fiscal Year to gain assurance that billed amounts are appropriate. Finalize the comprehensive Memorandum of Agreements with DOW and DPOR and assure that the MOAs provide provisions specific to the level of detail to be maintained by DOW and DPOR necessary to support grant disbursements to those Divisions

Disposition

Implemented.

2. Ensure that the percentage for grants authorized is at least twenty-five percent in the categories that are below the "substantially equal" expenditure level. Identify expenditure categories that are below the twenty-five percent level and focus on increasing those areas of spending by encouraging those divisions and entities to submit grant applications and to request reimbursement timely.

Partially implemented. While GOCO has made efforts to ensure that awards are equal across quadrants, expenditures remain unequal.

Financial Statement Section

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Members of the Legislative Audit Committee:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund's basic financial statements as listed in the foregoing table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America as established by the Auditing Standards Board of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Fund's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and major fund of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund as of June 30, 2004, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 12, 2004, on our consideration of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3200

Denver, CO 80202

T 303.813.4000

F 303.839.5711 Audit

F 303.839.5701 Tax

W www.grantthornton.com

The management's discussion and analysis on pages 15 through 17 and the major fund budgetary comparison information on page 38 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Lout Short a CCP

Denver, Colorado August 12, 2004

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

June 30, 2004

The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund's (GOCO) discussion and analysis is designed to provide a financial performance overview of GOCO's financial activities for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2004. The management's discussion and analysis is intended to be read in conjunction with the GOCO financial statements beginning on page 20.

Financial Highlights

GOCO is primarily a pass-through entity; it receives funding from net Lottery proceeds and grants them for capital construction projects that preserve, protect and enhance Colorado's wildlife, park, river, trail and open space heritage. Grants are provided to four areas: wildlife; state parks and outdoor recreation; open space and natural areas; and local governments' open space, parks and environmental education. The following table highlights significant variances between Fiscal Year 2004 and Fiscal Year 2003.

	2004	2003	Variance
Lottery Revenues	\$49,639,294	\$48,699,156	\$940,138
Grant Expenditures	43,601,606	46,631,024	(3,029,418)

- GOCO received its maximum allowable Lottery proceeds for the year of \$49.6 million, per the constitutional cap. This represents a \$940 thousand increase in Lottery proceeds to GOCO.
- Grant expenditures decreased by 6% or \$3 million from Fiscal Year 2003. The higher expenditures in Fiscal Year 2003 can be attributed to one particular legacy project for which GOCO expended over \$9 million.

Overview of the Financial Statements

GOCO's only source of income, other than investment income, is the Colorado Lottery. Net Lottery proceeds are distributed as follows:

- 40% to the Conservation Trust Fund.
- 10% to the Division of Parks & Outdoor Recreation,
- The remaining 50% to GOCO up to the statutory limit.

GOCO's funding is capped at \$35 million a year adjusted for inflation using 1992 as the base year (\$49.6 million in Fiscal Year 2004); any remaining net Lottery proceeds in excess of the cap are distributed to the State Public School Fund.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

June 30, 2004

Government-wide Statement

Statement of Net Assets

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net Assets compared to prior Fiscal Year.

Statement of Net Assets As of June 30

	2004	2003
Current and other assets	\$ 64,851,654	\$ 59,586,798
Capital assets	104,528	<u>120,899</u>
Total assets	64,956,182	59,707,697
Current liabilities	6,516,341	5,706,350
Net assets:		
Invested in capital assets	104,528	120,899
Unrestricted	<u>58,335,313</u>	<u>53,880,448</u>
Total net assets	\$ <u>58,439,841</u>	\$ <u>54,001,347</u>

The significant portions of current and other assets are cash and the Lottery receivable. The Lottery receivable increased to \$10.5 million in Fiscal Year 2004 from \$9.0 million in Fiscal Year 2003. This 17% net increase is attributed to an increase in Lottery proceeds from \$48.7 million in Fiscal Year 2003 to \$49.6 million in Fiscal Year 2004. In addition, GOCO granted a \$3 million loan to the Nature Conservancy in Fiscal Year 2004. (See footnote F in the notes following the financial statements.)

The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Activities compared to prior Fiscal Year.

Statement of Activities For the year ended June 30

	2004	2003
Revenue:		
Lottery revenue	\$ 49,639,294	\$ 48,699,156
Investment revenue	22,226	<u>2,525,083</u>
Total revenue	49,661,520	51,224,239
Program expenses:		
Grants expended	43,601,606	46,631,024
Personnel services and benefits	1,001,513	976,878
Operating	<u>619,907</u>	<u>599,39</u> 9
Total expenses	<u>45,223,026</u>	48,207,301
Change in net assets	4,438,494	3,016,938
Ending net assets	\$ <u>58,439,841</u>	\$ <u>54,001,347</u>

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

June 30, 2004

Government-wide Statement (Continued)

Two items should be mentioned in comparing the change in net assets from Fiscal Year 2004 to 2003.

First, grant expenditures decreased by 6% in Fiscal Year 2004. The higher expenditures in Fiscal Year 2003 can be attributed to one particular legacy project for which GOCO expended over \$9 million during 2003. The staff has continued to increase its efforts to work with grantees in completing the required documentation for grant reimbursement.

Second, GOCO's net investment income decreased by 99% in 2004. This is attributed to GOCO's allocation of the unrealized loss on investments managed by the State at the end of the year. According to the State Treasurer's office, this unrealized loss is due to a reduction in the investment pool and a shift from long-term to more short-term investments. (See footnote D in the notes following the financial statements.)

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

The Colorado Lottery projects a decline in proceeds it will generate going forward. GOCO's projections for Lottery proceeds that will be available to GOCO is 5% lower than the Colorado Lottery's projections. Next year GOCO is projecting \$45.98 million in revenue from the Lottery, while the constitutional cap for Fiscal Year 2005 is \$50.2 million. Also, GOCO is budgeting \$1,667,081 for operating expenditures. This amount is classified as follows:

Salaries and Benefits	\$ 1,111,645
Operating expenses	537,936
Capital expenditures	<u> 17,500</u>
	\$ 1,667,081

Basic Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCE SHEET

June 30, 2004

		General Fund	_A	djustments (Note C)		tatement of Net Assets
ASSETS Cash and investments Lottery proceeds receivable Other receivables Other assets Loan receivable Property and equipment, net of	\$	51,327,606 10,506,324 335 17,389 3,000,000	\$	- - - - - 104,528	\$	51,327,606 10,506,324 335 17,389 3,000,000
accumulated depreciation Total assets	-	64,851,654	-	104,528	-	64,956,182
LIABILITIES Grants payable Accounts payable Compensated absences payable	\$	6,465,789 10,631 39,921	\$	- - -	\$	6,465,789 10,631 39,921
Total liabilities		6,516,341				6,516,341
FUND BALANCES/NET ASSETS Fund balances: Reserved for loan receivable Designated for subsequent year's expenditures Unreserved and undesignated		3,000,000 13,712,081 41,623,232		(3,000,000) (13,712,081) (41,623,232)		- - -
Total fund balances		58,335,313		(58,335,313)		_
Total liabilities and fund balances	\$	64,851,654	:			
Net assets: Invested in capital assets Unrestricted Total net assets			<u>\$</u>	104,528 58,335,313 58,439,841	-	104,528 58,335,313 58,439,841

The accompanying notes are an itegral part of these statements.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND GOVERNMENTAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

	General Fund	Adjustments (Note C)	Statement of Activities	
Expenditures/expenses:				
Grants expended	\$ 43,601,606	\$ -	\$ 43,601,606	
Personnel services and benefits	1,001,513	-	1,001,513	
Operating	576,431	43,476	619,907	
Capital outlay	27,105	(27,105)	-	
Total expenditures/expenses	45,206,655	16,371	45,223,026	
Program revenues:				
State lottery proceeds	49,639,294	-	49,639,294	
Net program revenues			4,416,268	
General revenues:				
Investment earnings	22,226	-	22,226	
Excess of revenues over expenditures	4,454,865	(4,454,865)	-	
Change in net assets	-	4,438,494	4,438,494	
Fund balance/net assets:				
Beginning of the year	53,880,448	120,899	54,001,347	
End of the year	\$ 58,335,313	\$ 104,528	\$ 58,439,841	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2004

NOTE A – DEFINITION OF REPORTING ENTITY

The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (GOCO), a political subdivision of the State of Colorado, was established at the 1992 General Election through the electorate's adoption of Amendment 8, which resulted in Article XXVII of the Colorado Constitution. Article XXVII established the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund and a Board as the trustee of the trust fund and allocates certain net proceeds of the Colorado Lottery to GOCO in trust. Article XXVII authorizes GOCO to use these funds to preserve and enhance Colorado parks, wildlife, trails, rivers, open space and natural areas by making strategic investments, fostering partnerships among diverse interests, and supporting education about the outdoor environment of the State of Colorado.

GOCO follows the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) accounting pronouncements that provide guidance for determining which governmental activities, organizations and functions should be included within the financial reporting entity. GASB pronouncements set forth the financial accountability of a governmental organization's elected governing body as the basic criterion for including a possible component governmental organization in a primary government's legal entity. Financial accountability includes, but is not limited to, appointment of a voting majority of the organization's governing body, ability to impose its will on the organization, potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits or burdens and fiscal dependency. GOCO does not have any component units.

GOCO is a separate political subdivision of the State of Colorado as stated in Article XXVII. GOCO is not considered to be a component unit of the State for the purpose of the State's annual financial reporting.

NOTE B - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The more significant accounting policies of GOCO are described as follows:

1. Government-wide and fund financial statements

Because GOCO has only one fund, a general fund, it has presented its government-wide financial statements and fund financial statements together with an adjustment column to show the reconciliation between the two required basic statements.

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of GOCO. Interfund activity, if any, has been removed from these statements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1. Government-wide and fund financial statements (Continued)

Both of the government-wide financial statements are designed to distinguish functions of GOCO that are principally supported by intergovernmental revenues and operating grants (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The primary governmental activities of GOCO include the distribution of funds to preserve and enhance Colorado parks, wildlife, trails, rivers, open space and natural areas. GOCO has no business-type activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or program are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or program. Program revenues include grants, contributions and other revenues that are restricted to use in the operational or capital requirements of a specific function or program. Other revenues not directly related to a particular function or program, if any, are reported separately as general revenues.

Since GOCO does not operate any enterprise fund or internal service fund activities, there are no proprietary funds to include in this report. The general fund, because it is considered to be a major governmental fund and is GOCO's only fund, is reported as a separate column in the fund financial statements.

2. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as expenditures when all of the eligibility and reimbursement requirements of the grantor have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current Fiscal Year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current Fiscal Year. For this purpose, GOCO considers revenues to be available if they are collectible within approximately sixty days of the end of the current Fiscal Year. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (Continued)

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, as used in the governmental fund financial statements, acquisition costs of capital assets are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and depreciation is not recognized on these capital assets.

GOCO reports the following major governmental fund:

The general fund is the primary operating fund. It accounts for all general operating financial resources of GOCO. There are no resources required to be accounted for in another fund.

Private sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989 are generally followed in the government-wide financial statements to the extent that those standards don't conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). Governments also have the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to the same limitations. GOCO has no business-type activities and does not operate any enterprise funds.

3. Budgets

GOCO's budget is not legislatively adopted.

4. Capital assets

The capital assets of GOCO consist primarily of furniture and fixtures, computer hardware and software, equipment and leasehold improvements used in the routine operation of GOCO. Durable items with a useful life greater than one year and a cost greater than \$1,000 are capitalized. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.

Capital assets of GOCO are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Asset Type	Years
Furniture and fixtures	10
Computer hardware and software	3 - 10
Equipment	5 – 7
Leasehold improvements	5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE B – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

5. Accrual for compensated absences

GOCO has a policy that allows permanent full-time employees to accumulate unused vacation benefits. GOCO also allows the accumulation of compensatory time up to a maximum of 240 hours. (Sick leave is forfeited upon termination of employment with GOCO and therefore is not accrued on GOCO's financial statements). A liability has been recorded for compensated absences in the financial statements.

6. State Lottery proceeds

State Lottery proceeds are a distribution from the Colorado State Lottery based on the calculation of net proceeds and allocations established in Article XXVII. The calculation of net proceeds incorporates Lottery revenue, operation expenses, prize payments, and certain reserves. Article XXVII provides for net proceeds to be distributed not less than quarterly to the Conservation Trust Fund and Division of Parks and Outdoor Recreation in amounts allocable by statute as amended as of January 1, 1992; to certain debt service payments through November 1998; and to GOCO.

GOCO's share is limited by Article XXVII to \$35 million annually plus increases in the Consumer Price Index compounded annually based on 1992. The share for Fiscal Year 2004 was approximately \$49.6 million, which was the maximum amount allowable under statute. GOCO has estimated Lottery proceeds to be \$45.98 million for Fiscal Year 2005 which is less than the amount allowed of approximately \$50.2 million for that year.

7. Fund equity

Designations of unreserved fund balances indicate GOCO's intention for future utilization of such funds and are subject to change by GOCO. The designated fund balance in the General Fund in the amount of \$13,712,081 represents the amount of budgeted subsequent year expenditures in excess of revenues.

The State Board Of The Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE C – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the government-wide statement of net assets

The statement of net assets and governmental fund balance sheet includes an adjustment between fund balance – total governmental fund and net assets – governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net assets. The only element of that adjustment pertains to capital assets. Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the fund. The \$104,528 adjustment to property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation, represents the capital assets of GOCO, net of accumulated depreciation.

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance and the government-wide statement of activities

The statement of activities and governmental fund revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance includes an adjustment between net changes in fund balance – total governmental fund and change in net assets of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. The only element of that adjustment pertains to capital assets.

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This adjustment represents the amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays in the current period. The details of this adjustment are:

Capital outlay, net of proceeds on sale of fixed assets of \$475	\$ (27,105)
Depreciation expense (\$38,497) and loss on disposal of assets (\$4,979)	43,476
Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances – total governmental fund to arrive at	A 46054
change in net assets of governmental activities	\$ <u>16,371</u>

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE D – CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash Deposits

The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) requires that all political subdivisions of the State deposit cash in eligible public depositories. Eligibility is determined by state regulators. Amounts on deposit in excess of federal insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible collateral is specified under the PDPA. PDPA allows the institution to create a single collateral pool for all public funds. The pool for all the uninsured public deposits as a group is to be maintained by another institution or held in trust. The market value of the collateral must be at least equal to 102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits.

The Colorado Divisions of Banking and Financial Services are required by statute to monitor the naming of eligible depositories and reporting of the uninsured deposits and assets maintained in the collateral pools.

Deposits are categorized to give an indication of the level of credit risk related to custody of assets assumed by the government at the end of the year. Category 1 includes deposits that are insured, Category 2 includes collateralized deposits held by the pledging institution's trust department or agent in GOCO's name and Category 3 includes uncollateralized, uninsured deposits.

At June 30, 2004, GOCO's cash deposits had a bank balance and a carrying balance as follows:

	Bank Balance	Carrying Balance	
Cash on hand	\$ -	\$ 296	
Insured deposits – Category 1	100,000	100,000	
Deposits collateralized in single institution			
pools – Category 2	<u>509,849</u>	<u>81,306</u>	
	\$ <u>609,849</u>	\$ <u>181,602</u>	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE D – CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments

Colorado statutes specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in which a political subdivision may invest, which include:

- Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. government agency securities
- Certain international agency securities
- General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
- Bankers' acceptances of certain banks
- Commercial paper
- Written repurchase agreements collateralized by certain authorized securities
- Certain money market funds
- Guaranteed investment contracts
- Local government investment pools

Additionally, pension trust funds may invest in railroad equipment trust certificates, real property, loans for real property other than residential property, notes, bonds, debentures, stocks (common and preferred), life insurance company agreements and any other type of investment agreement.

GOCO's investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of credit risk assumed by GOCO at year end. Category 1 includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are held by the entity or its agent in GOCO's name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker's or dealer's trust department or agent in GOCO's name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker or dealer, or by its trust department or agent but not in GOCO's name.

Investments in the State Treasurer's cash pool, mutual funds and money market funds are not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. Investments are stated at fair value.

Not Subject to Categorization State Treasurer's cash pool

\$ 51,146,004

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE D – CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

State Treasurer's Cash Pool

Article XXVII created and established the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (Trust Fund) in the Treasury of the State of Colorado. Article XXVII requires that all net Lottery proceeds are to be deposited into the Trust Fund to be used for the purposes set forth in Article XXVII. The State Treasurer has invested the monies held in the Trust Fund in the State Treasurer's cash pool. A detailed composition of the cash and investments is available in the annual State Treasurers' Report.

Summary

Total cash deposits and investments at June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Cash deposits	\$ 181,602
Investments	<u>51,146,004</u>
	\$ 51,327,606

Investment Earnings

Investment earnings is comprised of the following:

Investment income	\$ 1,418,81 /
Net unrealized loss on investments held	
by the State	(<u>1,396,591</u>)
Investment earnings	\$22,226

Because of the significance of the net unrealized loss on investments held by the state, investment earnings was not sufficient to cover personnel services and benefits and other operating expenditures. Accordingly, state Lottery proceeds were used to fund the excess expenditures.

The State Board Of The Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE E - LOTTERY PROCEEDS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2004, GOCO had distributions owed from the Colorado State Lottery amounting to \$10,506,324. This represents GOCO's allocation of net proceeds from the Colorado State Lottery for the months of April through June 2004. These revenues are both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the fiscal period.

NOTE F - LOAN RECEIVABLE

On February 13, 2002, the Board approved a request from the Nature Conservancy (the Conservancy), a non-profit corporation, for a project loan subject to the execution of a detailed loan agreement. However, GOCO had no commitment at that time. On March 9, 2004, GOCO entered into an agreement to loan the Conservancy \$3 million to aid in the acquisition of the real property interest in the Baca Ranch, located in the San Luis Valley, Colorado, part of the Great Sand Dunes National Park and Preserve. It was agreed that the borrower would pay the entire purchase price into escrow on March 12, 2004 and such funds will remain in escrow until closing which is to be completed by September 30, 2004. If closing does not occur by that date, the borrower is to return the funds to GOCO. If closing does occur, full payment for the loan is to be received from the borrower by March 12, 2009, with payments beginning no later than March 12, 2005 based on formulas contained in the loan agreement. No interest will be charged for the period March 12, 2004 through March 11, 2007. Interest will be charged at a rate equal to the Colorado State Treasurer's rate on other funds held for GOCO beginning March 12, 2007. The loan is unsecured.

NOTE G - CAPITAL ASSETS

An analysis of the changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2004 follows:

	Balance at July 1, 2003	Additions	Retirements	Balance at June 30, 2004
Equipment	\$ 69,064	\$ 23,105	\$ (18,849)	\$ 73,320
Software	77,625	4,475	(1,036)	81,064
Furniture	27,995	-	-	27,995
Leasehold improvements	81,018			81,018
	255,702	27,580	(19,885)	263,397
Less accumulated				
depreciation	(134,803)	(38,497)	14,431	(<u>158,869</u>)
Total capital assets, net	\$ <u>120,899</u>	\$ (<u>10,917</u>)	\$ <u>(5,454</u>)	\$ <u>104,528</u>

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE H - AWARDED GRANTS AND EXPENDED GRANTS

The following is a summary of grants authorized and grants expended from inception in 1993 through June 30, 2004:

Grants Awarded:

	Cumulative Authorized Grants at	Transfers/	Transfers/	Cumulative Authorized Grants at
	June 30, 2003	Additions	Deletions	June 30, 2004
Colorado Division of Wildlife Colorado State Parks and	\$ 88,111,711	\$ 13,675,000	\$ -	\$ 101,786,711
Outdoor Recreation	87,047,721	13,125,000	(593)	100,172,128
Open space	86,206,603	14,276,361	(1,613,145)	98,869,819
Local governments	84,788,960	15,559,548	(167,768)	100,180,740
Noncategorized –				
Discretionary*	1,195,174		_(125,000)	<u>1,070,174</u>
	\$ <u>347,350,169</u>	\$ <u>56,635,909</u>	\$ (<u>1,906,506</u>)	\$ <u>402,079,572</u>

Grants Expended:

	Cumulative Expended for Grants at June 30, 2003	Net Additions and Transfers	Cumulative Expended for Grants at June 30, 2004
Colorado Division of Wildlife	\$ 66,493,660	\$ 12,170,297	\$ 78,663,957
Colorado State Parks and			
Outdoor Recreation	73,433,616	8,358,672	81,792,288
Open space	67,487,462	12,144,810	79,632,272
Local governments	61,135,775	11,052,827	72,188,602
_	268,550,513	43,726,606	312,277,119
Noncategorized –			
Discretionary*	<u>1,195,174</u>	<u>(125,000</u>)	1,070,174
	\$ 269,745,687	\$ <u>43,601,606</u>	\$ 313,347,293

^{*}Amounts authorized and expended in 1996 and 1999 attributed to Youth Corp projects, which were considered part of the GOCO mission but not specifically identified within one of the four categories above. In Fiscal Year 2004, GOCO reclassified \$125,000 of this amount to Colorado State Parks and Outdoor Recreation.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE I – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Lease

GOCO leases facilities under an operating lease, which expires in April 2011 with a one year renewal option. Total facilities and equipment rental lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2004 was \$128,576. The future minimum lease payments under the facilities lease are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30:	
2005	\$ 15,973
2006	96,853
2007	101,924
2008	102,938
2009	108,009
2010–2011	<u>204,101</u>
Total	\$ <u>629,798</u>

NOTE J - PENSION PLANS

As a political subdivision of the State, GOCO has elected not to use the Public Employees' Retirement Association of Colorado (PERA). GOCO has established a retirement plan that consists of an employer funded Defined Contribution Pension Plan and an employee funded Deferred Compensation Plan.

Defined Contribution Pension Plan

As of July 1, 2002, GOCO amended and restated the State Board, Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund Pension Plan. Unified Trust Company administers this plan at the direction of each employee for his/her own account.

There are no age or service requirements determining eligibility and participation is mandatory. Employer contributions are calculated based on 10.2% of each eligible employee's gross salary (base salary plus performance awards). Assets of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees. Therefore, the plan assets are not reflected as an asset of GOCO.

GOCO contributed \$82,244 to the plan for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2004.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE J – PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Deferred Compensation Plan

GOCO has a State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund Deferred Compensation Plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. This plan is administered by Unified Trust Company at the direction of each employee for his/her own account. The plan allows the employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement or death or unforeseen emergencies.

Contributions to the plan are made by GOCO's employees through a pre-tax payroll deduction. Contributions to the plan are mandatory for all permanent employees with a minimum required contribution of 6.2% of each employee's gross salary. Contributions above 6.2% are allowed on a voluntary basis not to exceed a maximum permissible amount. Assets of the plan are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of participating employees. Therefore, the plan assets are not reflected as an asset of GOCO.

NOTE K- RELATED PARTIES - STATE AGENCIES

Board Composition and Approval of Grants

The Board of GOCO is composed of seventeen members, fourteen of whom are public members (two from each congressional district) appointed by the Governor, subject to the consent of the Senate. The three ex-officio members include the Executive Director of the Colorado Department of Natural Resources; a representative designated by the State Board of Parks and Outdoor Recreation; and a representative designated by the Colorado Wildlife Commission. The State Board of Parks and Outdoor Recreation and the Colorado Wildlife Commission are the governing bodies of the Colorado Division of Parks and Outdoor Recreation and the Colorado Division of Wildlife, respectively. These State agencies are under the administrative direction of the Colorado Department of Natural Resources.

Under the Colorado Constitution, the Board of GOCO is responsible for ensuring that expenditures are made for purposes stipulated, including investing in wildlife resources through the Colorado Division of Wildlife and investing in outdoor recreation resources through the Colorado Division of Parks and Outdoor Recreation. In addition, the Colorado Division of Wildlife and the Colorado Division of Parks and Outdoor Recreation are eligible to apply for competitive grants for open space and natural areas of statewide significance, along with local governmental entities and non-profit land conservation organizations.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

June 30, 2004

NOTE L - RISK MANAGEMENT

GOCO is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors or omissions; injuries to employees, or acts of God. GOCO carries commercial insurance coverage for all risks of loss including workers compensation and employee health and accident insurance. GOCO has settled one claim since inception, which did not exceed commercial coverage.

NOTE M – TAX, SPENDING AND DEBT LIMITATIONS

In November 1992, Colorado voters passed Section 20, Article X of the Colorado Constitution, commonly known as the Taxpayer's Bill of Rights (TABOR). TABOR contains revenue, spending, tax, and debt limitations that apply to the State of Colorado and all local governments. In the same general election, Article XXVII was passed creating GOCO. The simultaneous passage of these two constitutional amendments raised questions as to whether there are irreconcilable conflicts between the two amendments.

The General Assembly determined, in Section 24-77-102(17)(b)(ix) C.R.S., that the net proceeds from the Colorado Lottery that are deposited in GOCO are excluded from the scope of "state Fiscal Year spending" for purposes of TABOR. The Colorado Supreme Court, in response to an interrogatory from the General Assembly, approved that determination.

TABOR is complex and subject to further legislative and judicial interpretation. GOCO believes it is in compliance with both of these constitutional amendments.

Required Supplementary Information

The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2004

			Variance-
	TD 1	A . 1	Favorable
n.	Budget	Actual	(Unfavorable)
Revenues	# 45 E20 000	¢ 40.630.204	\$ 4,119,294
State Lottery proceeds	\$ 45,520,000	\$ 49,639,294	
Net investment and miscellaneous income	700,000	22,226	(677,774)
Total revenues	46,220,000	49,661,520	3,441,520
Expenditures			
Grants expended	55,440,000	\$ 43,601,606	11,838,394
Personnel services and benefits	1,044,868	1,001,513	43,355
Operating expenditures	554,338	576,431	(22,093)
Capital outlay	30,000	27,105	2,895
Total expenditures	57,069,206	45,206,655	11,862,551
Excess (deficiency) of revenues			
over expenditures	(10,849,206)	4,454,865	15,304,071
Fund balance - beginning of year	53,880,448	53,880,448	
Fund balance - end of year	\$ 43,031,242	\$ 58,335,313	\$ 15,304,071

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Members of the Legislative Audit Committee:

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and major fund of The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (GOCO) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise The State Board of Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated August 12, 2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

In planning and performing our audit, we considered GOCO's internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether GOCO's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the Members of the Legislative Audit Committee in the Findings and Recommendations section as listed in the foregoing Table of Contents.

707 Seventeenth Street, Suite 3200

Denver, CO 80202

T 303.813.4000

F 303.839.5711 Audit

F 303.839.5701 Tax

W www.grantthornton.com

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the State of Colorado's Legislative Audit Committee and GOCO and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, upon release by the Legislative Audit Committee this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. Don't Stouten LCP

Denver, Colorado August 12, 2004

Members of the Legislative Audit Committee:

We have audited the basic financial statements of the State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund (GOCO) for the year ended June 30, 2004. Auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America require that we communicate the following matters related to our audit with the audit committee. The matters discussed herein are those that we have noted as of August 12, 2004. We have not updated our procedures regarding these matters since that date to the current date. Accordingly, we advise you of the following with respect to The State Board of the Great Outdoors Colorado Trust Fund for the Year Ended June 30, 2004:

Our Responsibility Under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America and Government Auditing Standards

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether caused by error or fraud. An audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS) and Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, does not provide absolute assurance or guarantee the accuracy of the financial statements and is subject to the inherent risk that errors or fraud, if they exist, have not been detected. Such standards also require that we obtain a sufficient understanding of the GOCO's internal controls to plan the audit. However, such understanding is required for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal controls.

Our responsibility under US GAAS and Government Auditing Standards includes reporting to you fraud involving senior management and fraud (whether caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material misstatement of the financial statements. We noted no such instances.

Our Responsibility for Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements

Pursuant to professional standards, the auditors' responsibility for other information in documents containing GOCO's audited financial statements (for example, Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) or annual reports) does not extend beyond the financial information identified in the auditors' report, and the auditors are not required to perform procedures to corroborate such other information other than to apply certain limited procedures to the MD&A as described in our report on the financial statements dated August 12, 2004. In accordance with such standards, we have read the information in the MD&A and considered whether such information, or the manner of its presentation, was materially inconsistent with its presentation in the financial statements. Our responsibility also includes calling to management's attention any information that we believe is a material misstatement of fact. No such inconsistencies or misstatements came to our attention.

Significant Audit Adjustments

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a significant audit adjustment as a proposed correction of the financial statements that, in our judgment, may not have been detected except through our auditing procedures. The definition includes adjustments that were not recorded by the GOCO because they are not material to the current financial statements but might be potentially material to future financial statements. There were no significant adjustments that were either waived or made to the GOCO financial statements.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to the GOCO's financial statements or the auditor's report. We are please to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Audit Process

The staff of GOCO was most cooperative throughout the audit.

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the Legislative Audit Committee and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However, it is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited.

Dunt Shorton LCP

Denver, Colorado August 12, 2004

The electronic version of this report is available on the Web site of the Office of the State Auditor www.state.co.us/auditor

A bound report may be obtained by calling the Office of the State Auditor 303.869.2800

Please refer to the Report Control Number below when requesting this report.

Report Control Number 1616